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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.:

Robert Cespedes, individually and on behalf of CLASS REPRESENTATION
others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
VS.

Miami Lakes AM, LLC d/b/a

“Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Driver’s Auto Mart”;
Atlantic Coast Automotive, Inc. d/b/a

“Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Driver’s Auto Mart”;
Kendall Lakes Automotive, LLC d/b/a

“Kendall Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram” and “Miami Lakes
Auto Mall”, and;

Faisal Ahmed, individually,

Defendants.

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Robert Cespedes, and others similarly situated, sue Defendants, Miami Lakes
AM, LLC d/b/a “Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Kendall Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram”; Atlantic
Coast Automotive, Inc. d/b/a “Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Driver’s Auto Mart”; Kendall
Lakes Automotive, LLC d/b/a “Kendall Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram” and “Miami Lakes Auto
Mall”, and; Faisal Ahmed, individually, and allege:

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

1. This is an action to recover money damages for unpaid minimum wages brought
under the laws of the United States of America. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to the Fair

Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C., Sections 201-219, inclusive (“FLSA”).
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2. Plaintiff Robert Cespedes worked as an automobile salesperson at a conglomerate
of automobile dealership locations known as “Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Driver’s Auto Mart”
in Miami-Dade and Broward County, Florida. Mr. Cespedes, together with any other person who
may hereafter consent to join in this lawsuit, is an “employee” within the meaning of 29 U.S.C.
8203(e). He worked at both dealership locations and was transferred between them.

3. Defendants Miami Lakes AM, LLC d/b/a “Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and “Driver’s
Auto Mart”; Kendall Lakes Automotive, LLC d/b/a “Kendall Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram” and
“Miami Lakes Auto Mall”; Atlantic Coast Automotive, Inc. d/b/a “Driver’s Auto Mart” and
“Miami Lakes Auto Mall”; are, respectively, Florida limited liability companies and a corporation
owned and operated by and through, directly and indirectly, Defendant Mr. Faisal Ahmed and his
son Mr. Ali Ahmed, who operate at least two related, closely, privately held automobile dealership
locations as a single conglomerate under the fictitious names of “Miami Lakes Auto Mall” and
“Driver’s Auto Mart”, among others. Defendant Mr. Faisal Ahmed is an employer of the Plaintiff
in that he, directly and indirectly through his designees, exercised operational control over both
dealership operations.

4, Defendants, each of them individually and together as a group, is a “person” and
an “employer” within the meaning of the 29 U.S.C. §203 (a) and (d) and is hereinafter referred to
as the “Employer”. Moreover, this same “Employer”, each individually or together, is an enterprise
engaged in commerce within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. 8203(s).

5. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by 28 U.S.C. 81337, and by 29 U.S.C.
8216(b). The Employer is, and at all times material to this action was, an organization which sells

and/or markets and/or transports services and/or goods to customers in Florida. Upon information
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and belief, the annual gross revenue of the Employer was at all times material to this action in
excess of $500,000.00 per annum.

6. By reason of the foregoing, the Employer is, and at all times material to this action
was, an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as defined in
Sections 3(r) and 3(s) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C., 88 203(r) and 203(s). Moreover, the Plaintiff was,
and others similarly situated were, individually engaged in commerce by virtue of the nature of

the work performed.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

7. The named Plaintiff is similarly situated to an untold number of other salespersons
who work or have worked for the Employer at the dealership locations known as “Miami Lakes
Auto Mall” and “Driver’s Auto Mart” during any part of the past three years at either of the related
dealerships.

8. The named Plaintiff and those similarly situated work or worked under a
“commissions-only” pay plan in place at both dealerships. On a bi-weekly basis sales persons are
paid either the commissions generated during the established bi-weekly pay period based upon the
number of automobiles sold by each respective salesperson, or if greater, they are paid a variable
sum purporting to represent a minimum hourly wage for each hour “logged” during the bi-weekly
pay period. In either case, the amounts paid are treated as compensation from which all applicable
tax and related withholdings are deducted. However, as a matter of practice and policy, any
amounts paid to salespersons on account of hours “logged” are subsequently, automatically
deducted by the Employer from commissions earned by the salespersons in perpetuity.

9. When employees are paid a supposed hourly wage for the hours “logged”, they are

considered to be “in the hole”. Thus, any amount paid on account of hours during a given bi-
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weekly pay-period is not paid finally and unconditionally, but rather is treated by the Employer as
money owed to it by sales personnel, which amounts they automatically and systematically
withdraw from commissions earned after employees are paid the wages. Thus, hourly wages are
treated as money owed to the Employer, until completely repaid from commissions earned in
perpetuity. The “hole” is a debt to the Employer owed by salespersons which is collected until
repaid in full.

10. The named plaintiff and those similarly situated were routinely scheduled and
required to work approximately one hundred and twenty (120) to one hundred and thirty (130)
hours or more during bi-weekly pay-periods, but they actually did work well in excess of the
number of hours they were scheduled to work, and more than the hours “logged” because the time-
keeping and pay plan are designed to discourage the accurate recording of hours worked, since the
logging of time results in a debt to the Employer. However, throughout many pay periods, the
Plaintiff and those similarly situated were paid less than the minimum wage required for every
hour worked during bi-weekly pay periods.

11.  The Employer maintains a method of time keeping which would or could reflect
the actual number of hours worked by sales personnel, however, because the payment of wages
based upon hours logged effectively results in a perpetual debt owing to the Employer, the system
is not reliable, encourages the underreporting of hours worked, and is not meaningfully enforced.

12. Only commissions generated as provided under published pay plans are actually
and unconditionally paid, although they are often not paid on the regularly scheduled pay day as

required by law.
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13. The Employer further avoids the responsibility of paying a minimum wage to sales
personnel during every established pay-period by taking unjustified deductions from the time
actually logged by employees as well as deductions from their commission earnings.

14, On numerous occasions during the period of time covered by this Complaint, the
Plaintiff, and those similarly situated, generated fewer sales commissions than are necessary to
cover the required minimum wage for all hours actually worked, or they sometimes were not paid
all of their earned commissions and bonuses under the pretext that they were unqualified for such
compensation as a result of being “in the hole”.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

15. Plaintiff has engaged the services of the undersigned attorneys and have agreed to
pay reasonable attorney’s fees for their services.

ENTITLEMENT TO ATTORNEY’S FEES

16. Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of prevailing party attorney’s fees and costs
pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. 88 201-219 and other related authority.

17. Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of prevailing party attorney’s fees pursuant to
Florida Statute §448.08.

VIOLATION OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
(Failure to Pay Minimum Wages)

18. At all times during employment, the Plaintiff, and others similarly situated, were
employees required to be finally and unconditionally paid a minimum hourly wage during each
respective pay period for every hour actually worked during said bi-weekly pay period.

19. Since on or about December, 2014 through the present (“the applicable period
covered by this Complaint”), the Employer violated the provisions of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §206

and 8215(a)(2) by failing to pay the Plaintiff and other similarly situated salespersons a minimum
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hourly wage during numerous applicable pay periods by, among other factors: (a) failing to finally
and unconditionally pay at least the applicable minimum hourly wage for every hour worked
during numerous covered pay periods as required by law; (b) maintaining a system which
effectively encourages the underreporting of hours worked, and; (c) making unjustified deductions
and reductions from earned compensation to minimize payroll obligations.

20.  Atall times material to this action, the Employer failed to comply with 29 U.S.C.
Sections 201-219 and 29 C.F.R., Sections 516.1, et. seq. in that Plaintiff and those similarly
situated performed services for the benefit of the Defendants for which they were paid below the
minimum wage rates required under both federal law, and under applicable Florida law and
Constitution, whose occasionally higher minimum wage rates are made applicable under the
FLSA. Other persons who may become plaintiffs in this action, also provided labor as hourly-rate
employees and/or former employees of the Employer and have also been systematically paid less
than the applicable minimum hourly wage, for the reasons set forth above.

21. The Employer knew or showed a reckless disregard for the provisions of the FLSA
concerning the payment of minimum wages and remains owing the named Plaintiff and other
similarly situated employees a minimum wage for every hour worked during the three year period
preceding this lawsuit.

-- COUNT II --

BREACH OF AGREEMENT TO PAY WAGES
(Failure to Pay Agreed Wages)

Plaintiff realleges 11 1 through 17, as though fully set forth herein.
22.  Atall times during their employment, the Plaintiff and those similarly situated were

employees whom the Employer had agreed to pay at wages representing the greater of a minimum
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hourly wage for every hour worked during corresponding pay periods, or commissions earned
during each pay period.

23.  Toward this end, the Employer promised to calculate and finally pay commissions
due, or if greater, a minimum hourly wage, on a bi-weekly period. Hourly wages were not to be
clawed back by the Employer beyond the bi-weekly pay period during which they were earned.

24. The Employer breached the agreement to pay wages by, among other factors,
clawing back wages paid on account of hours worked, from commissions subsequently earned in
subsequent pay periods, and by failing to pay a minimum hourly wage for all hours actually
worked.

25. The Employer breached the agreement to pay wages and commissions by secreting
sales profits -- from which sales commissions are calculated -- through a series of accounting
escamotages, including the adding undisclosed and fictitious “Pack” charges and Dealer Fees as a
cost of vehicles to the dealer, and secreting MSRP “Holdback” payments the manufacturer makes
directly to the dealer after vehicles are sold, all accomplished to diminish the percentage of gross
revenues generated in calculating the commissions promised under the pay plan.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand the following: payment of all accrued unpaid wages and
commissions, and wrongfully confiscated wages and commissions, together with all payments
promised under the pay plan, in an amount to be proven at the time of trial; accrued interest on
those sums at the applicable judgment rate of interest, and; an award of reasonable attorney’s fees
and costs.

-- COUNT I --

VIOLATION OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
(Retaliation by Employer)

Plaintiff realleges 11 1 through 6 as though fully set forth herein.
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26. Plaintiff exercised an FLSA protected right by complaining to the Employer about
their failure to pay FLSA wages due, and his rights to recover unpaid minimum hourly wages for
every hour worked.

27.  Almost immediately following his complaint regarding the non-payment and the
late payment of wages, and as a result of such exercise, the Plaintiff suffered adverse employment
consequences.

28. At all times material to this action, the Employer violated 29 U.S.C. §215(a)(3) in
that Defendant retaliated against Plaintiff for asserting rights under the FLSA.

29.  The Employer knew and/or showed a reckless disregard of the provisions of the
FLSA concerning the prohibition against retaliation against the assertion of FLSA rights and thus
is liable to compensate the Plaintiffs for damages, liquidated damages, punitive damages and other
equitable relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of others similarly situated, demands
the following: employment, reinstatement, promotion, lost wages, front pay, compensatory
damages, pre-judgment interest, and punitive damages pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act
to be proven at the time of trial and for such further relief as may be permitted by the Fair Labor
Standards Act, whichever is greater, together with court costs and attorney’s fees.

JURY DEMAND

30. Plaintiff and those similarly situated who hereafter consent to join this lawsuit,
demand trial by jury of all issues, claims and defenses in this action that are triable as of right by
ajury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, and others similarly situated, demand the following: payment of

minimum wages for every hour worked by them and those similarly situated during every pay
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period, or as much as is allowed by the Fair Labor Standards Act, whichever is greater, in an
amount to be proven at the time of trial; an additional like amount as liquidated damages; an award
of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, and; any and all such other relief which this Court may
deem reasonable under the circumstances. Also, in the event that Plaintiffs do not recover
liquidated damages as allowed, then Plaintiff and those similarly situated demand an award of
prejudgment interest as a lesser alternative to liquidated damages.

Dated: January 5, 2018
ANTHONY F. SANCHEZ, P.A.
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF
6701 SUNSET DRIVE, SUITE 10|
Miami, FL 33143
TEL.: 305-665-92 1 |
FAX: 305-328-4842
E-MAIL: AFS(@LABORLAWFLA.COM

By:  /s/Anthony F. Sanchez
ANTHONY F. SANCHEZ
FLORIDA BAR NoO. O789925




4 Rev. £165€ 1:18-cv-20057-UU - Documpi - S8 GpfE$P Docket 01/05/2018 Page 1 of 1

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (@) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS

Robert Cespedes, individually, on behalf of others similarly situated, Miami Lakes AM, LLC; Atlantic Coast Automotive, Inc.; Kendall Lakes

Automotive, Inc.; Faisal Ahmed

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

NOTE:

(C) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)

Anthony F. Sanchez
6701 Sunset Drive, Suite 101
Miami, FL 33143 305-665-9211

I1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) I1l. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
@ 1 U.S. Government X3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State X1 3 1 Incorporated or Principal Place a4 X4
of Business In This State
3 2 U.S. Government 3 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State O 2 3 2 Incorporated and Principal Place g5 A3ds
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item I11) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a O 3 @3 3 Foreign Nation g6 36
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure 3 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
0 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane 3 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |3 423 Withdrawal T 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
T 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 3 367 Health Care/ 0 400 State Reapportionment
3 150 Recovery of Overpayment |3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS O 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 0 820 Copyrights 0 430 Banks and Banking
O 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patent O 450 Commerce
0 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 3 368 Asbestos Personal 0 840 Trademark 0 460 Deportation
Student Loans 3 340 Marine Injury Product O 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Marine Product Liability LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY. Corrupt Organizations
O 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY |@ 710 Fair Labor Standards 3 861 HIA (1395ff) 3 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle 3 370 Other Fraud Act 3 862 Black Lung (923) 3 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits 3 355 Motor Vehicle [ 371 Truth in Lending 3 720 Labor/Management 3 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) | O 850 SecuritiessCommodities/
0 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal Relations 0 864 SSID Title XVI Exchange
3 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI (405(g)) 3 890 Other Statutory Actions
0 196 Franchise Injury O 385 Property Damage 3 751 Family and Medical 0 891 Agricultural Acts
3 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act O 893 Environmental Matters
Medical Malpractice 3 790 Other Labor Litigation T 895 Freedom of Information
| REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |3 791 Employee Retirement FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
0 210 Land Condemnation 3 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: Income Security Act 0 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 0 896 Arbitration
3 220 Foreclosure 3 441 Voting [ 463 Alien Detainee or Defendant) O 899 Administrative Procedure
3 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 442 Employment O 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
3 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
O 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations [ 530 General O 950 Constitutionality of
0 290 All Other Real Property O 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | O 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION State Statutes
Employment Other: O 462 Naturalization Application
O 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 3 540 Mandamus & Other |3 465 Other Immigration
Other 3 550 Civil Rights Actions
O 448 Education 3 555 Prison Condition
3 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X’” in One Box Only)

X1 Original
Proceeding

A 3 Remanded from
Appellate Court

[ 4 Reinstated or
Reopened

3 5 Transferred from
Another District
(specify)

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are fiIin(t;_ (Do not cite‘éurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C., Sections 201-219

Brief description of cause: L
FLSA Minimum wages, retaliation, breach of agreement to pay wages

0 CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $

3 2 Removed from

O 6 Multidistrict
State Court i

Litigation

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VIlI. REQUESTED IN CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.CV.P. JURY DEMAND: X Yes I No
VIIl. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY (See nstruetionsy 3G DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
01/05/2018 s/ Anthony F. Sanchez
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

i W swers. |




Case 1:18-cv-20057-UU Document 1-2 Entered on FLSD Docket 01/05/2018 Page 1 of 1

AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Southern District of Florida

Robert Cespedes, individually,
on behalf of others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action No.

Miami Lakes AM, LLC; Atlantic Coast Automotive,
Inc.; Kendall Lakes Automotive, Inc.; Faisal Ahmed

N e N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
MIAMI LAKES AM, LLC
c/o Registered Agent Haas A. Hatic, Esquire
Greenspoon Marder, P.A.
200 East Broward Blvd, Suite 1500
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Anthony F. Sanchez, Esq.

6701 Sunset Drive, Suite 101
Miami, FL 33143

Tel.: 305-665-9211

Fax: 305-328-4842

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 01/05/2018

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Southern District of Florida

Robert Cespedes, individually,
on behalf of others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action No.

Miami Lakes AM, LLC; Atlantic Coast Automotive,
Inc.; Kendall Lakes Automotive, Inc.; Faisal Ahmed

N e N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
ATLANTIC COAST AUTOMOTIVE, INC.
c/o Registered Agent Haas A. Hatic, Esquire
Greenspoon Marder, P.A.
200 E. Broward Blvd, 15th Floor
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Anthony F. Sanchez, Esq.

6701 Sunset Drive, Suite 101
Miami, FL 33143

Tel.: 305-665-9211

Fax: 305-328-4842

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 01/05/2018

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Southern District of Florida

Robert Cespedes, individually,
on behalf of others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action No.

Miami Lakes AM, LLC; Atlantic Coast Automotive,
Inc.; Kendall Lakes Automotive, Inc.; Faisal Ahmed

N e N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
KENDALL LAKES AUTOMOTIVE, LLC
c/o Registered Agent Greenspoon Marder, P.A.
200 East Broward Blvd, Suite 1500
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Anthony F. Sanchez, Esq.

6701 Sunset Drive, Suite 101
Miami, FL 33143

Tel.: 305-665-9211

Fax: 305-328-4842

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 01/05/2018

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Southern District of Florida

Robert Cespedes, individually,
on behalf of others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action No.

Miami Lakes AM, LLC; Atlantic Coast Automotive,
Inc.; Kendall Lakes Automotive, Inc.; Faisal Ahmed

N e N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
FAISAL AHMED
16600 NW 57th Avenue
Miami Lakes, FL 33014

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Anthony F. Sanchez, Esq.

6701 Sunset Drive, Suite 101
Miami, FL 33143

Tel.: 305-665-9211

Fax: 305-328-4842

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: 01/02/2018

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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